
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
June 7, 2012, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 3, 2012 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 2


 
(1) Memo from LAFCO dated May 14, 2012 re Availability of Special District 


Representative Positions 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Resolution 12-11, Approving the Construction Project 


Budget and Awarding the Contract for the FY 2013 Capital Improvement Project 
to Valentine Corporation in the Sum of $969,401, and Authorizing the General 
Manager Total Change Order Approval up to $96,940, and Single Change Order 
Approval up to $25,000 (Est. time 15 minutes) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re 2014-2018 Capital Improvement Projects priorities (Est. 


time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Potential debt restructuring (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Compensation for Board members (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Crystal Communications lease (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Terrace saddle failures (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 20 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 


subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 
 
B.   Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Public Employee Performance 


Evaluation 
 Title: Legal Counsel 
 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
May 3, 2012 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Jim Quigley 
   
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap (arr. 6:47 p.m.) 
 Richard Holmer 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna, Meyers Nave 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Sukey Robb-Wilder at 6:35 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:36 


p.m.) 
 
(None.)  
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:36 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Quigley seconded.  
Motion carried 3-0.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 5, 2012 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: 
 
 (1) Letter dated April 12, 2012 from Thomas O’Kane, Sonoma County 


Department of Transportation and Public Works, re Meeting on May 1 for the 
Planned Temporary Closure of Drake Road in June 2012 for the removal and 
replacement of the Drake Road viaduct 


 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:32 p.m.) Public hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 12-08, Adopting Water 


Rates for Fiscal Year 12-13.  The GM introduced this item and made a PowerPoint 
presentation.   


 
 * Director Schaap arrived at 6:47 p.m. 
 
 Board questions and discussion ensued.  At 6:50 p.m. President Robb-Wilder opened 


the public hearing.  There were no comments.  The public hearing was closed at 6:50 
p.m.  District counsel Mike Gogna requested for the record that Director Schaap confirm 
he had reviewed the staff report on this item.  Further discussion ensued.  Director Robb-
Wilder pointed out a typo on page 2, Section 2 of the Resolution (the word “Ordinance” 
was changed to “Resolution”, and in the first sentence the words “clause of phrase” was 
changed to read “clause or phrase”).  Director Wikle moved to approve by reading of title 
Resolution 12-08, Adopting Water Rates for Fiscal Year 2012-2013, as amended.  
Director Quigley seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
B. (6:58 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 12-09, Adopting the FY 2012-13 


Operating and Capital Improvement Budget.  The GM provided an overview of this 
item and made a PowerPoint presentation.  Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder 
opened a public hearing on this item at 7:14 p.m.  There were no comments.  Director 
Robb-Wilder closed the public hearing at 7:14 p.m.  Director Quigley moved to adopt 
Resolution 12-09, Adopting the FY 2012-13 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget.  
Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


C. (7:17 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Loan prepayment analysis.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Extensive discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


D. (7:43 p.m.) Discussion/Action re FY 2011-12 3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 
Operations and Capital Expenditures, and County Balances.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


E. (7:51 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Crystal Communications lease.  The GM provided 
an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


F. (7:53 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Terrace saddle failures.  The GM provided 
a brief overview of this item, but discussion was deferred to Closed Session. 


G. (7:54 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 12-10, Ordering an Election to be Held 
and Requesting Consolidation with the November 6, 2012 General District Election.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Brief discussion ensued.  Director Wikle 
moved to approve Resolution 12-10, Ordering an Election to be Held and Requesting 
Consolidation with the November 6, 2012 General District Election.  Director Schaap 
seconded.  Motion carried 4-0. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8 p.m.) 
 
The GM reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 


 2







4. Guerneville Rainfall Chart 
5. Toilet Rebate Program 
6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Events 
8. Gantt Chart 
9. Drake Road closure 
 
Board questions and brief discussion ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:09 p.m.) 


 
Director Quigley announced that 1 acre foot = 1’ deep on a football field.  
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:10 p.m.) 
 
At 8:10 p.m. President Robb-Wilder announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 
8:11 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:57 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the 
following actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation 
pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 


  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 


of Section 54956.9. 
  Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al. 
    SCV 240790  
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:57 p.m.) 
 
1. Construction contract for CIP 2013 
2. Rio Vista saddle failures (Closed Session) 
3. Crystal Communications / radios 
4. Loan – Potential debt restructuring 
5. CIP 2014 priorities / tradeoffs 
6. Possible compensation for Board members 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:02 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  


 3







 4


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:36 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:36 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:09 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:10 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:57 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A.   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : June 7, 2012  
 
Subject:  AWARD OF 2013 CIP CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT                                              
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 12-11 which conditionally awards the 
2013 CIP construction contract to Valentine Corporation for a not to exceed amount of 
$969,401 and authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders for a total 
amount not to exceed $96,940 with no single change order exceeding $25,000.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $969,401, plus up to $96,940 in possible change orders, for a total 
amount of $1,066,341, approximately 75% to be funded from Sonoma County 
Community Redevelopment Agency (RDA) grant funding which was approved in April 
2011 by the RDA and 25% from the Sweetwater Springs Water District Net Operating 
Revenues and Reserves. 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
Replacement of aging water main infrastructure is an important activity of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District.  Toward that end the District has developed a 
multiyear capital improvement program that has prioritized the capital infrastructure 
that needs to be replaced or improved.  The District is currently working on the FY 2013 
CIP as described in Table 1 below: 
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2013 Capital Improvement Project (CIP)  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2013    


  
Starrett Hill Road (MR) Replace approximately 1760 ft of main line, 22 
services. $380,000 


  
Lovers Lane (GV) Replace approximately 1440 ft of main line, 24 
services. $300,000 


  
Middle Terrace (MR) Replace approximately 1,375 ft of main line, 17 
services. $290,000 


  


Canyon Seven Rd (GV) – Eliminate dead end mains and create loops by 
installing 1,950 lf of new main and appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd 
between Sequoia Rd and Paradise Ln.   $329,000 


 2013 Total $1,299,000 
 75% FY 2013 CIP RDA Grant $974,250


 
 







AWARD OF 2013 CIP CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   2   
June 7, 2012                                                                 


This construction project was advertised on May 10, 2012, and 3 bids were received and 
opened on May 31, 2011 in accordance with bid instructions.  The bidders and bid 
amounts are shown in Table 2 below.  Coastland Civil Engineering (Coastland), the firm 
providing design and construction management services for this project, has reviewed 
the bids and determined that Valentine Corporation is the apparent low bidder for the 
amount of $969,401.  At the time of the writing of this agenda report Coastland is in 
the process of determining whether Valentine Corporation has the proper licenses to 
perform the 2013 CIP and otherwise is qualified to complete the 2013 CIP. Valentine 
Corporation is based in San Rafael and has a good reputation, including successful 
installation of HDPE distribution systems which are included in the Starrett Hill and 
Middle Terrace elements of this project.  Coastland’s investigation will determine if the 
bid of Valentine Corporation complies with the bid instructions and is responsive to the 
proposal requirements.  We will inform you by email when Coastland gives us a final 
determination.  
 
The work authorized under this contract is scheduled to start within 10 days of notice to 
proceed and, according to the contract, will be completed within 90 working days of the 
notice to proceed.  The work involves repair, replacement and/or reconstruction of 
existing water main distribution lines, and the installation of water “services” and fire 
hydrants.  The work is in the same general location as existing facilities and will result 
in no expansion of system capacity. 
 
Assuming the contract goes to Valentine Corporation, the contract amount is $969,401 
which is $63,807 under the engineer’s estimate of probable cost of $1,033,208. As 
shown in Table 2, the next lowest bid was approximately $380,000 higher.  Perhaps the 
excellent bidding climate is disappearing.  The Request for Proposals included 
requirements for successful experience with installation of HDPE systems and that may 
have shortened the bidding field a bit.      
 
The staff recommendation includes authorization for the General Manager to approve up 
to $96,940 in total change order authority for work not anticipated by the contract with 
no single change order exceeding $25,000.   When combined with the change order 
authority, the total amount of this construction contract is $1,066,341.  Design and 
construction management costs for the project are a not-to-exceed amount of $223,037 
which puts the total project cost at $1,289,378 which is very close to the original 
estimated cost in Table 1.    
 
This contract will be funded approximately 75% by a grant from the RDA (up to the 
estimated project cost of $1,299,000) and 25% from the Net Operating Revenues and 
District Reserves.  Any costs over the $1,299,000 estimate will be 100% funded by the 
District.  The work is part of the District’s Capital Improvement Program and will 
provide important and necessary improvements to the District’s distribution system.   
 
The RDA was dissolved by the State Legislature and its funding obligations have been 
taken over by the County of Sonoma as Successor to the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency.  This agency has continued to include this project in its 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) and we believe we can count on this 
grant funding to be fulfilled.   
 


 







AWARD OF 2013 CIP CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   3   
June 7, 2012                                                                 


 


Assuming a positive review by Coastland, staff recommends approval of Resolution 12-
11 which conditionally awards the 2013 CIP construction contract to Valentine 
Corporation for a not to exceed amount of $969,401, based on the Board’s 
determination that Valentine Corporation is a responsible bidder and the bid submitted 
by Valentine Corporation is responsive, and authorizes the General Manager to approve 
change orders for an amount not to exceed $96,940, with no single change order 
exceeding $25,000.   The conditions of the bid award include Valentine Corporation’s 
timely delivering a duly executed Project contract and submitting all required 
documents, including properly executed bonds, certificates of insurance and 
endorsements, pursuant to the Project bid documents.  Again, if we get a contrary 
report from Coastland, we will let you know.   
   
 
Table 2.  2013 Capital Improvement Project Bid Summary 


Bidder Name Bid Amount  


Piazza Construction $1,353,885 


Team Ghilotti $1,448,708 


Valentine Corporation $969,401 


 







Resolution No. 12-11 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION PROJECT  
BUDGET AND AWARDING THE  CONTRACT FOR THE FY 2013 CAPITAL 


IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  TO  VALENTINE CORPORATION IN THE SUM OF 
$969,401, AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TOTAL CHANGE 
ORDER APPROVAL OF $96,940 AND SINGLE CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL 


UP TO $25,000 
 


 WHEREAS, District staff, including consulting engineering services employed by 
the District, prepared construction bid documents and advertised for construction of the 
FY 2013 Capital Improvement Project. (“Project”); and 
 


WHEREAS, District staff solicited bids for the Project on May 10, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 31, 2012, 3 bids were received and opened in accordance 


with the bid instructions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest bid for the Project was from Valentine Corporation in the 


amount of $969,401and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has determined that the Valentine Corporation bid satisfies the 


bidding requirements for the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has verified that Valentine Corporation possesses the required 


licenses and is otherwise qualified to perform the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Project involves the replacement or reconstruction of existing 


facilities and will result in negligible or no expansion of capacity, thus the Project is 
exempt from environmental review, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) and Title 14, the California Code of Regulations (“CEQA Guidelines”), section 
15301(b) and 15302(c); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Project has been approved by the Russian River 
Redevelopment Oversight Committee (RRROC), and the Sonoma County Community 
Redevelopment Agency (RDA) for approximately 75% grant funding of the project, with 
the remaining amount funded by the District and the County of Sonoma as Successor to 
the Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency has continued to include this project in its 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS).  The District has adequate funds to 
fund its portion of the project funding amount; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notwithstanding the above-referenced bid amount, it is anticipated 
that the Project will have a certain amount of unanticipated construction issues during 
construction necessitating change orders; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is of importance to the contractor and District alike that 
construction not be unduly delayed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the General Manager is familiar with the project and will be 
monitoring construction. 
 







Resolution 12-11. Construction Contract for FY 2013 CIP with XX Construction 2 
June 7, 2012 


 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors 
hereby: 
 


1. Approves the Project construction contract in the amount of $969,401; 
and 


 
2. Waives any and all non-conformance in the bid of Valentine Corporation 


for the Project; and 
 
3. Finds the bid in the amount of $969,401 to be the lowest responsive bid 


and further finds that Valentine Corporation is a responsible bidder; and 
 
4. Awards the contract for the 2013 Capital Improvement Project to Valentine 


Corporation in the amount of $969,401, the amount of the lowest responsive bid, 
conditioned on Valentine Corporation timely executing the Project contract and submitting all 
required documents, including, but not limited to, executed bonds, certificates of insurance, 
and endorsements, in accordance with the Project bid documents; and 


 
5. Directs staff to issue a Notice of Award to Valentine Corporation; and 
 
6. Authorizes and directs the General Manager to execute the Project contract 


on behalf of the District upon timely submission by Valentine Corporation of the signed 
Project contract and all other required contract documents, in accordance with the contract 
bid instructions; and  


 
7. Authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders on the Project 


without Board approval up to $25,000 per change order, with total change order approval 
not to exceed $96,940. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on June 7, 2012, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder   


President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 





		Item V-A - Award of Contract, 2013CIP

		Meeting Date : June 7, 2012 



		Item V-A.1. Resolution 12-11 Award of Contract






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: June 7, 2012  
 
Subject:  EVALUATION OF THE 2014-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the evaluation of the 2014-2018 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and direct staff to reorder the CIP to better 
reflect funds available to the District.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Capital improvements are an important element of the District’s work effort.  
The District has an aging, inadequate infrastructure, an unacceptable amount of 
unaccounted for water and District staff spend too much time reacting to leaks 
in the distribution system.  A Capital Improvement Program (CIP) identifies the 
projects needed to upgrade a utility’s infrastructure and includes a process of 
reviewing District capital project needs.   In January 2011 the Board approved 
the 2012-2018 CIP (Table 1) which reflected the District’s capital project needs 
and expected available funding.   The 2012-2018 CIP was a wish list for which 
funding was heavily dependent on assistance from the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency (RDA) and the Russian River Redevelopment Oversight 
Committee (RRROC).   Shortly after approval of this CIP, the RDA was abolished 
by the State Legislature and the District made a request for funding of the 2012 
and 2013 CIP projects to the RRROC and RDA, which was approved.  This past 
winter the dissolution of Redevelopment was confirmed and the likelihood of new 
RDA funding or anything similar to it seems very slim.    
 
Because of this change in the availability of outside funding assistance, the 
District must re-examine its CIP to make it more realistic to the funds available 
for capital programs.    With Board approval and direction, our intention with this 
report is to present a reordering of possible capital projects to fit into the funds 
available, invite Board comments on this reordering, and have additional staff 
discussions on these projects for further refinement of the projects, if necessary.  
At the July 2012 meeting the refined list will be presented to the Board for its 
approval. 
 
Looking at Table 1, the first two years of the CIP is done or is soon to be 
under construction.  The 2014 CIP design will start next fall and is an 







2012-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 2  
June 7, 2012 


 


expensive project estimated to cost approximately $1.5 million.  In looking at 
the rest of the currently approved CIP, staff considered current District 
infrastructure needs, the recent leak and repair history and flow needs.  
Revising the priority of needed capital projects included the following: 
 


• $1million seems to still be a good expenditure target – it achieves 
some economy of scale in project mobilization for contractors.  We 
don’t want to be much below that amount.  Table 3 shows that 
reserves stay above District Policy levels if we keep the annual CIP 
amount at around $1million and skip years in the outer years.  We 
have approximately $5million in funds for the planning period of FY14 
through FY21.   


• For this revision we are looking at five years of CIP projects - $1million 
in projects for 5 years.  


• We have more projects than 5 years at $1million per year; lower 
priority projects will be put into an “Other” category.    


• The current 2014 CIP should be split into two years; we are trying to be 
closer to the $1 million in projects per year objective.   


• The Rio Nido project stays up on the priority list while Park Avenue and 
Cherry Street are moved down.  The Rio Nido project area has been a 
source of leaks recently and it’s not going to get better without this 
project or something similar.   


• The tank projects – Upper Summit Tank, Natoma Tank, and 
Schoeneman Tank – stay down on the priority list and have no year 
assigned.    These are important projects that could be included in the 
CIP, but their construction should be tied to and funding supported by 
possible development projects.  These projects are more important for 
future development projects than to existing needs.  If cost sharing 
arrangements can be developed, these projects can move up in the 
priority.  The remaining projects in the Other Projects category are tied 
to the completion of these tanks.   


• We are adding a new capital project, replacement of the green sand 
filter at the Monte Rio Treatment Plant.  This filter system was 
rehabilitated approximately 2 years ago and at the time we were told it 
would need rebuilding or replacement in about 8 years.  We would like 
to replace it with a system similar to what is used at the Highland 
Treatment facility.   


 
Table 2 shows the results of the reordering of the projects.  The total 
estimated cost of the 5 years of projects is approximately $4.4million.  The 
total wish list of projects is approximately $7.3million, a gap of almost 
$3million.  As shown in Table 4, which is the multi-year projection of 
available funding for capital projects, the District goes below Policy Reserve 
levels in the 4th year of this program but recovers by skipping a year.   At the 
end of the planning period, funds are available for additional capital 







2012-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 3  
June 7, 2012 


 


programs.   This CIP will be continually monitored, of course, and if more 
funding is available in the future the completion schedule can be accelerated.    
 
One measure of an adequate CIP is that one percent of the distribution 
system length is replaced on an annual average.  A recent calculation of 
District water distribution lines showed that the District has a total of 64.3 
miles of pipe (or approximately 337,400 feet).  One percent of that is 3,374 
feet – that’s one measure of the adequacy of our CIP.  Our recent 
construction has well exceeded that amount, but the District’s infrastructure 
is well below average condition and a catchup program has been needed.  
The revised CIP distribution footage replacement amount stays above the one 
percent target for the first four years, but falls short after that.  Again, this 
program and the District’s available funding will be continually monitored and 
can be revised as we develop more information and experience.   
 
The ad hoc Budget Committee met on May 24 to discuss the evaluation 
progress.  They were generally in accord with the proposed revisions.  The 
Committee did request that the cost per service be added to Table 2 which 
has been done.   The cost per service is a reflection of the residence variance 
of the proposed projects – the range is between $18,720 and $9,692.   
 
Please review the information in this report.   Staff will be available for 
comments and questions of all aspects of the evaluation of the CIP.  Staff plan to 
come the July meeting with a resolution for approval of a revised CIP which will 
be called the FY 2014-2019 CIP.    







2012-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 4  
June 7, 2012 


 


 
 
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Proposed 2012-2018 CIP  
Projects by Year 


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2012    


  
Western, Eastern and Northern Avenues and Orchard Lane (GV) -  
Replace 3,100 lf of existing main and appurtenances. $684,000 


  


Foothill Drive (MR) – Install 1,000 lf of new 8 – inch main and 
appurtenances from B Street northwesterly to end of existing 8 – inch 
main and make connection to other side of Foothill where section of road 
is closed to through traffic.   $671,000 


  2012 Total $1,355,000 
2013    


  
Starrett Hill Road (MR) Replace approximately 1760 ft of main line, 22 
services. $380,000 


  
Lovers Lane (GV) Replace approximately 1440 ft of main line, 24 
services. $300,000 


  
Middle Terrace (MR) Replace approximately 1,375 ft of main line, 17 
services. $290,000 


  


Canyon Seven Rd (GV) – Eliminate dead end mains and create loops by 
installing 1,950 lf of new main and appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd 
between Sequoia Rd and Paradise Ln.   $329,000 


  2013 Total $1,299,000 
2014    


  
Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances on Hidden Valley Rd. $656,000 


  


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 5,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances commencing at the Handy Andy Booster and proceeding 
westerly. 


$936,000 


  2014 Total $1,592,000 
2015    


  
Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 lf of main line on Park Ave. 
and McLane Ave., 37 services.  Loop two deadend lines. $688,000 


  Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 lf of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 


  


Guernewood Lane (GV) - – Replace 1,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances and abandon 200 lf of redundant 4 – inch main along Hwy 
116. $318,000 


  2015 Total $1,132,000 
2016    


  
Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $890,000 


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) Replace approximately 1,120 ft 
of existing mainline and 18 associated services along Wright Dr. and 
Wright Ln.   $275,000 


  2016 Total $1,165,000 
2017    







2012-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 5  
June 7, 2012 


 


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line replacement. (GV)    Replace 
approximately 3,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 associated services 
along Highland Way, Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, Laurel Way and 
Morningside Drive. $744,300 


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. (GV) Replace approximately 
1,900 ft of existing mainline and 27 associated services along Woodland 
Dr in the main pressure zone.  (requires completion of Schoeneman Tank) $400,000 


  2017 Total $1,144,300 
2018    
  Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 850 ft of main line.  $280,000 
  Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 ft of mainline along Main St. $180,000 


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the District–owned site on McLane 
Avenue. Project to include relocation/ construction of the existing hydro-
pneumatic pump station. $490,000 


  
Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 gallon storage tank with a 
30,000 storage tank.   2005 cost estimate 


$190,000 


  
Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 10,000 gallon tank with a 
30,000 gallon storage tank.  2005 cost estimate 


$127,000 


  2018 Total $1,267,000 
  Total 2012-2018 CIP $8,954,300 
     


  Other Possible Future Projects through FY2020   
Approximate 


Cost  


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    Replace approximately 3,280 
ft of existing mainline and 47 associated services along Wright Dr, Glenda 
Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires completion of Natoma Tank) $800,000 


  Total Approximate Cost of Future, Unapproved Projects $800,000 
 







2012-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 6  
June 7, 2012 


 


 
 


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Proposed 2014-2019 CIP Projects by Year; 
Revised Order 


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
Cost per 
service Comments 


2014    
 


  
        


  


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 
5,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances commencing at the Handy 
Andy Booster and proceeding westerly. $936,000 $18,720  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks  


  2014 Total $936,000    
2015       


  


Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf 
of existing main and appurtenances on 
Hidden Valley Rd. $656,000 $9,791  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks; 
need to figure out 
project 


  


Guernewood Lane (GV) - – Replace 1,800 
lf of existing main and appurtenances and 
abandon 200 lf of redundant 4 – inch main 
along Hwy 116. $318,000 $15,900  


Has been pushed down 
from past priority lists; 
needed. 


  2015 Total $974,000    
3rd 
Year       


  


Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace 
approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., 
Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $890,000 $13,284  


needed project; moving 
this up. 


  3rd Year  (2016?) Total $890,000    
4th 
Year       


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 
2900 lf of main line on Park Ave. and 
McLane, 37 services.  Loop two deadend 
lines. $688,000 $18,595  


pushed down, but 
needed 


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 
lf of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692  do with Park Ave. 


  4rd (2017?) Year Total $814,000    
5th 
Year       


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278    


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV) Replace approximately 1,900 ft of 
existing mainline and 27 associated $400,000 $14,815    







2012-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 7  
June 7, 2012 


 


services along Woodland Dr in the main 
pressure zone.   


  
Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand 
Filter Replacement $130,000 NA 


Insvestigation/analysis 
needed on replacing 
this 


  5th Year (2019?) Total $805,000    
        
  Priority List (5 Years) Total $4,419,000    
        
  Other Projects     


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace 
approximately 3,000 ft of existing mainline 
and 47 associated services along 
Highland Way, Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, 
Laurel Way and Morningside Drive. 
(requires completion of Schoeneman 
Tank) $744,300 $15,836    


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 
850 ft of main line.  $280,000   Do with Main Street 


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 
ft of mainline along Main St. $180,000    


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage 
tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. 
Project to include relocation/ construction 
of the existing hydro-pneumatic pump 
station. $490,000  


Do we wait on 
development for these 
tanks?  Does new 
development 
contribute? 


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon storage tank with a 30,000 
storage tank.   2005 cost estimate $190,000    


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon 
storage tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000    


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. 
(requires completion of Natoma Tank) $800,000 $17,021    


  Other Projects Total  $2,811,300    
        


  Total Projects Amount $7,230,300    







Water Rate Increase = 3% Starting in FY12; Sales reduce 4%/year
1.5% 2.2% Effective Rate Increases, CIP Revised


11-12 (FY12)
Rev BUDGET FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21


1 REVENUE
4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction C 235,000 235,000 293,750 367,188 404,300      404,300      404,300             404,300       404,300        404,300        
4031.1. · Water Sales 1,770,000 1,796,550 1,823,498 1,850,851 1,891,569 1,933,184 1,975,714 2,019,180 2,063,602 2,109,001


2 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,005,000 2,031,550 2,117,248 2,218,038 2,295,869 2,337,484 2,380,014 2,423,480 2,467,902 2,513,301
3 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 137,700 126,010 126,828 127,654 128,489 129,332 130,183 131,043 131,911 132,789


4 Total Income 2,142,700 2,157,560 2,244,076 2,345,693 2,424,358 2,466,816 2,510,197 2,554,523 2,599,813 2,646,089


5 EXPENSES
6 OPERATING EXPENSES
7 835,323 847,296 861,475 877,720 894,530 911,680 929,170 947,010 965,210 983,770
8 280,200 294,957 303,911 313,574 323,642 334,131 345,059 356,446 368,314 380,685
9 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,115,523 1,142,253 1,165,386 1,191,294 1,218,172 1,245,811 1,274,229 1,303,456 1,333,524 1,364,455


10 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 1% Except for Rent


11 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 509,390 514,140 518,937 523,783 528,676 534,479 540,353 546,299 552,317 558,410


12 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,624,913 1,656,393 1,684,323 1,715,077 1,746,849 1,780,290 1,814,582 1,849,755 1,885,841 1,922,865


13 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $517,787 $501,167 $559,753 $630,616 $677,510 $686,526 $695,616 $704,768 $713,972 $723,224


14 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 15,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000
15 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
16 8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Reven 235,000 235,000 293,750       367,188        404,300      404,300      404,300             404,300       404,300        404,300        
17 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 220,000 220,000 200,000 210,000 200,000 230,000 220,000 250,000 240,000 270,000
18 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 495,000 495,000 533,750 617,188 644,300 674,300 664,300 694,300 684,300 714,300
19 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 7,787 1,167 3 8,429 7,210 7,226 5,316 5,468 3,672 3,924


20 Capital Budget
21 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
22 Net Operating Revenues* 227,787 221,167 200,003 218,429 207,210 237,226 225,316 255,468 243,672 273,924
23 Total Assessments 777,000 777,001 777,002 777,003 777,004 777,005 777,006 777,007 777,008 777,009
24 Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 235,000       235,000       293,750     367,188     404,300    404,300    404,300          404,300     404,300     404,300     
25 Capital Interest 25,000         30,000         10,000       10,000       10,000      10,000      10,000            10,000       10,000       10,000       
26 CDC Grants 751,100       974,250       
27 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 500,000         200,000         860,000       780,000        750,000      -              730,000             720,000        
28 TOTAL REVENUE 2,515,887 2,437,418 2,140,755 2,152,619 2,148,514 1,428,531 2,146,622 1,446,775 2,154,980 1,465,233
29
31 Total Debt Payments 1,091,314      1,091,314      1,091,314    1,091,314     1,091,314   1,091,314   1,091,314          1,091,314    1,091,314     1,067,760     
32
33 CIP 2012 CIP 2013 CIP 2014 CIP 2015 CIP 2016 CIP 2017 CIP 2018 CIP 2019 CIP 2020 CIP 2021
34 Annual CIP 1,355,000 1,299,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 -             1,000,000  -             
35 In-House Construction Projects 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
36 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,486,314 2,430,314 2,131,314 2,131,314 2,131,314 1,131,314 2,131,314 1,131,314 2,131,314 1,107,760
37 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 29,573 7,104 9,441 21,305 17,200 297,217 15,308 315,461 23,666 357,473
38
39 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
42 Ending Funds ab District Policy 3,022,842    2,829,946    1,979,387  1,220,692     487,891      785,108      70,416               385,877       (310,458)       47,015          


* =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus
** =Transfers to CDRC


Table 3.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
PLANNING SUMMARY


EXPENSES


Total Benefits
Total Salary







2012-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 9  
June 7, 2012 


 


Water Rate Increase = 3% Starting in FY12; Sales reduce 4%/year
1.5% 2.2% Effective Rate Increases, CIP Revised


11-12 (FY12)
Rev BUDGET FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21


1 REVENUE
4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction C 235,000 235,000 293,750 367,188 404,300      404,300      404,300             404,300       404,300        404,300        
4031.1. · Water Sales 1,770,000 1,796,550 1,823,498 1,850,851 1,891,569 1,933,184 1,975,714 2,019,180 2,063,602 2,109,001


2 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,005,000 2,031,550 2,117,248 2,218,038 2,295,869 2,337,484 2,380,014 2,423,480 2,467,902 2,513,301
3 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 137,700 126,010 126,828 127,654 128,489 129,332 130,183 131,043 131,911 132,789


4 Total Income 2,142,700 2,157,560 2,244,076 2,345,693 2,424,358 2,466,816 2,510,197 2,554,523 2,599,813 2,646,089


5 EXPENSES
6 OPERATING EXPENSES
7 835,323 847,296 861,475 877,720 894,530 911,680 929,170 947,010 965,210 983,770
8 280,200 294,957 303,911 313,574 323,642 334,131 345,059 356,446 368,314 380,685
9 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,115,523 1,142,253 1,165,386 1,191,294 1,218,172 1,245,811 1,274,229 1,303,456 1,333,524 1,364,455


10 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 1% Except for Rent


11 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 509,390 514,140 518,937 523,783 528,676 534,479 540,353 546,299 552,317 558,410


12 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,624,913 1,656,393 1,684,323 1,715,077 1,746,849 1,780,290 1,814,582 1,849,755 1,885,841 1,922,865


13 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $517,787 $501,167 $559,753 $630,616 $677,510 $686,526 $695,616 $704,768 $713,972 $723,224


14 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 15,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000
15 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
16 8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Reven 235,000 235,000 293,750       367,188        404,300      404,300      404,300             404,300       404,300        404,300        
17 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 220,000 220,000 200,000 210,000 200,000 230,000 220,000 250,000 240,000 270,000
18 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 495,000 495,000 533,750 617,188 644,300 674,300 664,300 694,300 684,300 714,300
19 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 7,787 1,167 3 8,429 7,210 7,226 5,316 5,468 3,672 3,924


20 Capital Budget
21 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
22 Net Operating Revenues* 227,787 221,167 200,003 218,429 207,210 237,226 225,316 255,468 243,672 273,924
23 Total Assessments 777,000 777,001 777,002 777,003 777,004 777,005 777,006 777,007 777,008 777,009
24 Capital Debt Reduction Charge** 235,000       235,000       293,750     367,188     404,300    404,300    404,300          404,300     404,300     404,300     
25 Capital Interest 25,000         30,000         10,000       10,000       10,000      10,000      10,000            10,000       10,000       10,000       
26 CDC Grants 751,100       974,250       
27 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 500,000         200,000         810,000       760,000        650,000      540,000      370,000       
28 TOTAL REVENUE 2,515,887 2,437,418 2,090,755 2,132,619 2,048,514 1,968,531 1,416,622 1,816,775 1,434,980 1,465,233
29
31 Total Debt Payments 1,091,314      1,091,314      1,091,314    1,091,314     1,091,314   1,091,314   1,091,314          1,091,314    1,091,314     1,067,760     
32
33 CIP 2012 CIP 2013 CIP 2014 CIP 2015 CIP 2016 CIP 2017 CIP 2018 CIP 2019 CIP 2020 CIP 2021
34 Annual CIP 1,355,000 1,299,000 936,000 974,000 890,000 814,000 805,000     ??
35 In-House Construction Projects 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
36 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,486,314 2,430,314 2,067,314 2,105,314 2,021,314 1,945,314 1,131,314 1,936,314 1,131,314 1,107,760
37 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 29,573 7,104 23,441 27,305 27,200 23,217 285,308 -119,539 303,666 357,473
38
39 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
42 Ending Funds ab District Policy 3,022,842    2,829,946    2,043,387  1,310,692     687,891      171,108      456,416             (33,123)        270,542        628,015        


* =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus
** =Transfers to CDRC


Table 4.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
PLANNING SUMMARY Revised


EXPENSES


Total Benefits
Total Salary


 





		Meeting Date: June 7, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 7, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT LOANS AND BONDS 
RESTRUCTURING 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation on District loans and bonds 
restructuring.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the May 3 Board meeting, staff presented information on the District’s loans and 
bonds.  Table 1 which shows a summary of pertinent information on the District’s 
existing loans and bonds is again included.  As can be seen from the table, the District 
has 5 separate loans and bonds with an approximate current (end of FY11) balance of 
$14 million and an annual payment of $1,091,000.   At the May meeting questions were 
asked about refinancing the USDA Bonds.  I have called the local office and was 
informed that refinancing these bonds is not possible through the USDA office, because 
using the funds available to them for refinancing would greatly reduce the amount of 
funds available for new projects.  We did have a general discussion about loans and 
grants and the local representative did say that we could qualify for new debt on new 
projects with the possibility of loan forgiveness, somewhere in the range of 60% loan 
and 40% loan forgiveness (grant).  The current interest rate is in the 2.65% range, as I 
recall.       
 


Table 1.  District Loans/Bonds Table         


  


Year 
Starte


d Term


Year 
Paid 
Off 


Starting 
Amount 


Current 
Balance 
(Approx, 


7/11) 
Annual 


Payment 
Interes
t Rate 


USDA Bonds, 1992 1992 40
203


2  $  8,000,000   $    5,996,000   $    467,000 5.00%


USDA Bonds, 2003 2003 40
204


3  $  4,000,000   $    3,716,000   $    220,000 4.50%


CDWR Loan 1 1996 25
202


1  $     434,945   $      203,000   $     23,550  2.955%


CDWR Loan 2 1997 25
202


2  $  2,578,555   $    1,368,000   $    146,618 2.955%


Private Placement Loan 2008 20
202


8  $  3,000,000   $    2,760,000   $    234,012 4.75%







District Loans and Bonds  2  
May 3, 2012 


Totals        $ 18,013,500  $  14,043,000   $ 1,091,180   
USDA – United Stated Department of Agriculture 
CDWR – California Department of Water Resources 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 7, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation on Board Member compensation.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the May meeting staff was asked to bring forward information on Board member 
compensation.  Below is Table 1. Board Member Compensation, which is information 
provided by legal counsel regarding this issue.  In short, the District may compensate 
Board members up to $100 per meeting with a limitation of 6 compensable meetings 
per month.  Table 2 is a summary of an informal survey that staff did with local special 
districts, only one of which is a county water district (Valley of the Moon Water District 
which does compensate board members).   
 
We believe the Board last addressed this issue in 2001.  Information was developed, the 
Board apparently asked to develop a proposal for compensation of $50 per meeting up 
to a maximum of $100 per month.  A survey was sent out to District customers with the 
results of 38% supporting, 41% opposed and 21% no opinion (total responses were 
916).  The Board took no further action on this proposal.   
 
If the Board wishes to proceed with this proposal, issues that need to be addressed are 
amount of compensation and when the compensation would start.  Apparently there is 
no firm direction on this for county water districts.  Government Code §53232.1, which 
applies to city councils, gives some guidance on this matter.  
 
The effect on District finances would depend, of course, on the amount of compensation 
per meeting.  The 2001 proposal expected to be a maximum of $6,000 per year.   
 
 


  Table 1.  Board Member Compensation 
 
Cal. Water Code §30507.   
 







Board Member Compensation  2  
June 7, 2012 


Each director shall receive compensation in an amount not to exceed one hundred 
dollars ($100) per day for each day's attendance at meetings of the board or for 
each day's service rendered as a director by request of the board, not exceeding a 
total of six days in any calendar month, together with any expenses incurred in the 
performance of his or her duties required or authorized by the board. For purposes 
of this section, the determination of whether a director's activities on any specific 
day are compensable shall be made pursuant to Article 2.3 (commencing with 
Section 53232) of Chapter 2 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government 
Code. 
Reimbursement for these expenses is subject to Sections 53232.2 and 53232.3 of 
the Government Code. 
 
 
Cal. Govt. Code §53232.1.   
 
  (a) When compensation is otherwise authorized by statute, a local agency may pay 
compensation to members of a legislative body for attendance at the following 
occurrences: 
   (1) A meeting of the legislative body. 
   (2) A meeting of an advisory body. 
   (3) A conference or organized educational activity conducted in compliance with 
subdivision (c) of Section 54952.2, including, but not limited to, ethics training 
required by Article 2.4 (commencing with Section 53234). 
 
   (b) A local agency may pay compensation for attendance at occurrences not 
specified in subdivision (a) only if the governing body has adopted, in a public 
meeting, a written policy specifying other types of occasions that constitute the 
performance of official duties for which a member of the legislative body may receive  
payment. 
 
 
Cal. Govt. Code §36516.5.  (applicable to City Councils) 
 
A change in compensation does not apply to a councilman during his term of office; 
however, the prohibition herein expressed shall not prevent the adjustment of the 
compensation of all members of a council serving staggered terms whenever one or 
more members of such council becomes eligible for a salary increase by virtue of his 
beginning a new term of office. 
 
 
 
Table 2.  Survey of Local District Compensation 
Agency Compensation? Amount 
Russian River Fire Protection District No  
Monte Rio Fire Protection District Yes $50/meeting 
Monte Rio Recreation and Park District  No  
Russian River Recreation and Park District No  
Valley of the Moon Water District  Yes $100/meeting 







Board Member Compensation  3  
June 7, 2012 


Camp Meeker Recreation and Park District No  
Occidental Community Services District  No  
Forestville Water District No  
Forestville Fire Protection District Yes $50/meeting, donated back 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: June 7, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE CRYSTAL COMMUNICATIONS LEASE 
FOR DISTRICT MOUNT JACKSON PROPERTY 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive an update from the General Manager on the 
resolution of nonpayment issues with Crystal Communications lease for District Mount 
Jackson property.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
District staff completed the demonstration with the proposed replacement equipment 
and it went well.  The new digital equipment works better than our existing equipment.      
We are awaiting a revised proposal (based on actual equipment we have selected).   
Crystal has been making their monthly payments.     





		Meeting Date: June 7, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: June 7, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RIO VISTA TERRACE SADDLE 
FAILURES  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on progress resolving the Rio Vista 
Terrace service connection saddle failures.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
No saddles have failed recently  (as of May 31).  W.R. Forde did not respond in a 
timely manner to the offer discussed with them as reported last month.  District 
staff is in the process of reaching agreement with another contractor to do a four 
saddle investigation in the subject area.  We expect this investigation to occur in 
mid-June.  The Rio Vista Terrace residents have been alerted of the general 
issue and notified that we will be doing work in their area in the mid-June 
timeframe.  This item will be discussed more fully in closed session.     
 





		Meeting Date: June 7, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: June 7, 2012  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in April were 14,880 units 


(34.2.2 AF, Monte Rio cycle) and production was 57.0 AF.  Compared to one 
year ago, sales this April was more and production was less (32.4 AF and 
62.1 AF, respectively).   The difference between sales and production dipped 
below 27% to 26.5%.    Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving average since 
September 2006, data are available back to May 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  In April we had 11 total leaks and spent 40.5 man-hours on them.   


Those are about the same leaks and man-hours compared to the prior 
month and considerably fewer compared to April one year ago (25 leaks, 
114 man-hours).  Figure 2 is continued showing service and main leaks 
separately with a total breaks line as well.   The annual average continues  
below the 250 per year mark (hurrah!, but we’re aiming for 50) and the 
12month average of service leaks has passed main leaks numbers.        


 
4. Guerneville Rainfall Chart:   Figure 3 is the cumulative annual Guerneville 


rainfall starting in October.  We continue to be above the 2008-2009 
cumulative curve – a drought year, but the dry May has brought us closer. 
The real key for summer flows is storage in Lake Mendocino, but the Russian 
River instream flows index is based on Lake Pillsbury.  Apparently the levels 
there are still in the normal range.  It also appears that storage in Lake 
Mendocino is such that the Sonoma County Water Agency will not be 
requesting a Temporary Urgency Change for critical flow levels this summer, 
although the request went in for fish flow purposes. 


 
5. Russian River Flow at Hacienda:  Returning to the GM report is Russian 


River flow at Hacienda in Table 4.   It is looking similar to, but slightly higher 
than the early summer flow in 2009, the drought year.  Flow at the end of 
the month was in the 300 cfs range.          







General Manager’s Report  2 of 5 
June 7, 2012 


 


 
6. Toilet Rebate Program:  There no toilet rebates issued in May.  A total of 


82 rebates have been approved.   The Sonoma County Water Agency 
approved the revised agreement that will allow the Direct Install Program to 
begin.  Once we get going with that we will likely be changing our reporting 
format, probably including Guerneville system installations as well as Monte 
Rio.    


 
7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were 6 in-house projects 


reported for April requiring 240 man-hours.  The biggest project was 
replacement of 250’ of 2 inch main and 5 services on Melody Lane that 
required 159 man-hours.  Other projects included replacement of temporary 
pipe on Old Monte Rio Road, installation of a new service on Russian River 
Avenue, replacement of service line on Redwood Lane, installation of 100 
feet of 2 inch line to replace line that had a tree fall on it near Sweetwater 
Tank, and replacement of service line on Laurel Road.   


 
8. Events:  The Successor Agency Oversight Board met on May 4 – I was told 


our project was not discussed but was included in the Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule (ROPS) for the second half of the calendar year that was 
forwarded on to the State.  My understanding there will be no Oversight 
Board meeting scheduled soon unless the controversial projects (Springs 
and Roseland) require one.                


 
9. Gantt Chart:   The Gantt Chart was revised to include all of FY 2013.  


Please check to make certain items you want included are there.  June in the 
Gantt Chart shows the award of contract and start of construction for the FY 
2013 CIP – it’s on the agenda for this meeting.  A new item is review of the 
approved CIP – also on the agenda.                  


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 5 
June 7, 2012 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
06


Dec-
06


Mar-
07


Jun-
07


Sep-
07


Dec-
07


Mar-
08


Jun-
08


Sep-
08


Dec-
08


Mar-
09


Jun-
09


Sep-
09


Dec-
09


Mar-
10


Jun-
10


Sep-
10


Dec-
10


Mar-
11


Jun-
11


Sep-
11


Dec-
11


Mar-
12


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks
Service Breaks
Total Leaks


 







General Manager’s Report  4 of 5 
June 7, 2012 


 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


S


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2011
2012


-Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


ep
tem


be
r


 


Figure 4.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2012 Compared to Earlier Years 
and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated May 30, 2012


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


1,600


1-M
ay


8-M
ay


15
-M


ay


22
-M


ay


29
-M


ay
5-J


un


12
-Ju


n


19
-Ju


n


26
-Ju


n
3-J


ul


10
-Ju


l


17
-Ju


l


24
-Ju


l


31
-Ju


l


7-A
ug


14
-A


ug


21
-A


ug


28
-A


ug
4-S


ep


11
-S


ep


18
-S


ep


25
-S


ep
2-O


ct


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2011


2012


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 FY 14+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2012-13 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


2013-14 Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2013 CIP Design


•        2013 CIP Award of Contract


•        2013 CIP Construction Starts


•        2014 CIP Design


•        2014 CIP Award of Contract


•        2014 CIP Construction Starts


2010 Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-16


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and 
Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: June 7, 2012 



